-25120 -2008-06-30 MEA C

SECRETARY AGREEMENT

between the

Flushing Community Schools

and the

25120 06 30 2008 MEA

Michigan Education Association

2004-2008

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE		PAGE
1	Purpose	1
2	Union Recognition, Agency Shop and Dues Check Off	1
3	Non-Discrimination	4
4	Visitation	4
5	Stewards	4
6	Rights of the Board	5
7	Safety Practices	5
8	Jurisdiction - Contracting	5
9	Seniority	6
10	Promotions and Transfers	6
- 11	New Jobs	9
12	Discipline-Discharge	10
13	Leave of Absence	10
14	Sole and Exclusive Grievance Procedure	12
15	Hours and Work Week	14
16	Sick Leave and Funeral Leave	15
17	Holidays	17
18	Vacations	17
19	Insurance Protection	18
20	General	19
21	Benefits	. 22
22	Jury Duty	23
23	Annual Longevity Service Award	23
24	Classification and Compensation	. 24
25	Binding Effective Agreement	. 24
26	Scope, Waiver and Alterations of Agreement	. 24
27	Termination and Modification	
Schedule A	Bargaining Unit Employee Classifications	. 27
Schedule B	Hourly Wages	. 28
Attachment E	Grievance Report Form	
Attachment F	Letter of Understanding	. 34
Schedule C	Bargaining Unit Seniority and Salary Credit	. 35
Schedule D	2005-2006 Work Calendar	. 38
Schedule D	2006-2007 Work Calendar	. 42
Schedule D	2007-2008 Work Calendar	. 46
Attachment G	Dental Benefit Program	. 50
Attachment H	Vision Benefit Program	
Attachment I	Letter of Understanding	. 52

ARTICLE 1

PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this Agreement to promote and insure harmonious relations, cooperation and understanding between the Board and the Employees covered hereby, to insure true collective bargaining and to establish standards of wages, hours, working conditions and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 2

UNION RECOGNITION,

AGENCY SHOP and DUES CHECK OFF

Section 1 - Union Recognition

- (a) The Board hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent of the employees covered by this Agreement for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other conditions of employment.
- (b) The term "employee" as used herein shall include all Office Clerical, Secretarial Employees and Media Secretaries, but excluding Confidential Employees, Supervisors and all other Employees.
- (c) The employer agrees that, upon hiring any new employee who is covered by this Agreement, the employer shall notify the appropriate Union Steward in writing of the name, date of hire, Social Security Number, classification and job location of the new employee.

Section 2 - Agency Shop

a. Service Fees

Each employee shall, as a condition of employment:

- 1. On or before thirty (30) days from the date of commencement of duties or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, join the Union, or
- 2. Pay a service Fee to the Union. The Service Fee shall not exceed the amount of union dues collected from union members. The employee may authorize payroll deduction for such fee. In the event that the employee shall not pay such Service Fee directly to the Union, or authorize payment through payroll deduction, then at the request of the Union and in accordance with applicable laws and union policy, the employer will deduct the service fee from the employee's wages and remit same to the Union. Such deductions by the employer shall be made monthly from the regular salary check of the bargaining unit member each month for ten (10) months beginning in September and ending in June of each year.

b. Objections Policy

The established Union "Policy regarding Objections to Political-Ideological Expenditures" along with accompanying Administrative Procedures (including the timetable for payment) applies only to non-union bargaining unit members. The remedies set forth in that policy shall be exclusive, and unless and until such procedures, including any administrative or judicial review thereof, shall have been availed of and exhausted, no dispute, claim or complaint by an objecting employee concerning the application and interpretation of this Section shall be subject to the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement, or any other administrative or judicial procedure. The Union will indemnify and save harmless the Board (to the extent permitted by law) for any and all costs incurred as a result of any challenge to this provision. Legal counsel will be selected by the Union with the approval of the Board. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Union shall receive timely notice from the Board of any challenge to This provision.

Section 3- Dues Deductions

Any employee who is a member of the Union, or who has applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the employer an assignment authorizing deduction of dues, assessments and contributions to the Union as established by the Union. Such authorization shall continue in effect from year-to-year unless revoked according to the procedures outlined in the Michigan Education Association (MEA) Constitution, Bylaws and Administrative Procedures. Pursuant to such authorization, the Employer shall deduct one-tenth of such dues, assessments and contributions from the regular salary check of the bargaining unit member each month for ten (10) months, beginning in September and ending in June of each year.

The Union shall advise the Board in writing each year of the amount of dues and service fees. In the event a refund is due any employee for any sums deducted from wages and paid to the Union, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to obtain the appropriate refund from the Union.

Section 4 - Check-off

During the life of this Agreement, the Board will deduct current uniform dues or service fees provided that at the time of such deduction there is in the possession of the Board a current written assignment, executed by the employee, in the form and according to the terms of the authorization form attached hereto as "Attachment E."

Section 5

The Board will deduct current uniform dues or service fees from the pay of employees for the 2nd pay period ending in the calendar month. If an employee has no pay coming for such pay period or if such pay period is the first pay of new employee, such dues or service fees shall be deducted from the immediate subsequent pay period.

Section 6

The Board will deduct from the pay of employees in any month only the dues or service fees incurred while an employee has been in the employ of the Board and only such amounts becoming due and payable in such month.

Section 7

- (a) The Union shall advise the Board in writing each year what the amount of monthly or yearly dues or service fees is to be of the bargaining unit employees or changes therein. In the event that a refund is due any employee for any sums deducted from wages and paid to the Union, it shall be the responsibility of such employee to obtain appropriate refund from the Union.
- (b) The Union shall indemnify and save the Board harmless against any and all claims, demand, suits, or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the Board for purpose of complying with any of the provisions of this article.

Section 8

All sums deducted by the Board shall be remitted to the Union, at a location designated by the Union, no later than five (5) days after the deductible pay period.

Section 9

In the event the Union requests that the Board deduct monies in excess of the amounts deducted as of the date of execution of this Agreement, such request shall be effective only upon written assurance by the requesting party that the additional amounts have been authorized pursuant to and under the Union's Constitution: provided that in the event a new written authorization from the employee is necessary that such authorization will be secured by the Union and presented to the employer prior to the deduction of the newly certified amounts.

Section 10

The Board shall not be liable for the remittance or payment of any sums other than those constituting actual deductions made; if for any reason it fails to make a deduction for any employee as above provided, it shall make that deduction from the employee's next pay in which such deduction is normally deducted after the error has been called to its attention by the employee or the Union.

Section 11

The Union agrees that at no time will it solicit or collect monies of any kind on employer time.

Section 12

The Union shall promptly furnish the Board with dues authorization card from each member in the bargaining unit who desires deductions.

Section 13

Employees hired, rehired, reinstated or transferred into the bargaining unit shall, within thirty-one (31) calendar days of the commencement of their employment within the bargaining unit, elect either to become members of the Union or to pay the service fees and said employee will determine either to authorize payroll deduction by executing the same type form set forth in Attachment E or to pay the dues or service fees directly to the Union. An employee shall be deemed to have met the conditions of this Article provided the employee is not more than sixty (60) days in arrears of payment of dues or service fees.

ARTICLE 3

NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Board and the Union both recognize their responsibilities under Federal, State and Local Laws pertaining to fair employment practices as well as the moral principles involved in the area of Civil Rights. Accordingly, both parties reaffirm by this Agreement the commitment not to discriminate against any person or persons because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, age or national origin, disability, height, weight or marital status.

ARTICLE 4

VISITATION

Upon request by the Union, and the presentation of proper credentials, officers or accredited representatives of the Union shall be admitted onto the Board's premises during working hours for the purpose of ascertaining whether or not this Agreement is being observed by the parties, or for assisting in the adjusting of grievances, provided, that said visitation shall not disrupt orderly operations.

ARTICLE 5

UNION REPRESENTATIVES

- (a) The employees may be represented by a Union Representative who shall be chosen or selected in a manner determined by the employees and the Union, and whose name shall be made known to the Board in writing.
- (b) Reasonable arrangement will be made to allow the Union Representative time off with pay for the purpose of investigating grievances and to attend grievance and negotiating meetings, upon arrangements being made with the Union Representatives immediate supervisor.

(c) During the Union Representative's term of office, they shall be deemed to head the seniority list for the purposes of layoff and recall only, provided they are qualified to do the required work. Upon termination of their terms, they shall be returned to their regular seniority status.

ARTICLE 6

RIGHTS OF THE BOARD

- (a) The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself without limitations, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and Constitutions of the State of Michigan and the United States to manage and direct the Flushing Community Schools, provided that such rights and responsibilities shall be exercised by the Board in conformity with the provisions of this Agreement, but such rights established by law may not be infringed upon by any provision of this contract.
- (b). The exercise of the legislative powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan and the Constitution and laws of the United States.

ARTICLE 7

SAFETY PRACTICES

- (a) The employer will take reasonable measures to prevent and eliminate any present or potential job hazards which the employees may encounter at their places of work.
- (b) The employee will be expected to notify the employer in writing of any such job hazard as soon as the employee first becomes aware of such unsafe areas, conditions or equipment.

ARTICLE 8

JURISDICTION - CONTRACTING

Employees of the Employer not covered by the terms of this Agreement may temporarily perform work covered by this Agreement only for the purpose of instructional training, experimentation or in cases of emergency.

ARTICLE 9

SENIORITY

- (a) A newly hired employee shall be on a probationary status for sixty (60) calendar days, taken from and including the first day of employment. If at any time prior to the completion of the sixty (60) calendar days probationary period, the employee's work performance is unsatisfactory, the employee may be dismissed during this period without appeal by the Union. Probationary employees who are absent on scheduled work days, or who serve their probationary period during the non-school period in which the job is not operative, shall work additional days equal to the number of days absent or equal to the number of days that the job was not operative, and such employee shall not have completed the probationary period until these additional days have been worked.
- (b) Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period, the employee's seniority date shall be retroactive to first day of employment.
- (c) In the event that the Board determines that it is necessary to reduce the number of employees through the layoff procedure, the affected employee or employees shall be given a minimum of two (2) weeks written notice prior to the date that the scheduled layoff is to be effective. Employees shall be laid off, recalled or demoted according to their bargaining unit seniority in the classification being reduced. An employee scheduled for layoff shall have the right to displace a lesser seniority employee in a lower classification, provided the senior employee is qualified to hold the position held by the lesser seniority employee.
- (d) An employee will lose his/her seniority for the following reasons:
 - 1. The employee resigns.
 - 2. The employee is discharged for cause, and such discharge is not reversed through the grievance procedure.
 - 3. The employee retires.
- (e) Seniority shall be retained, but not accumulated, for an employee who transfers to a position outside of the bargaining unit, with that employee having the right to exercise the seniority that he/she had accumulated while he/she was a member of the bargaining unit in the event that the employee vacates such position outside of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 10

PROMOTIONS and TRANSFERS

(a) Notice of all vacancies and newly created positions shall be posted on employee bulletin boards within one (1) pay period from the date of vacancy, and the employees shall be given five (5) working days time in which to make application to fill the vacancy or new position.

- (b) An employee who is employed for less than twelve (12) months each year and who desires to be placed in another job or classification, shall make such request in writing to the Board Office, in which the applying employee shall indicate the specific job or classification that he/she wishes to be placed in. There shall be three (3) copies of such application made, with one (1) copy to be maintained by the Board Office, one (1) copy given to the applicant, one (1) copy furnished to the Union President.
- (c) Within one pay period of the date of vacancy or the establishment of a new position and school is not in session, the Board shall notify each employee who works less than twelve (12) months, and for whom the Board has a job change request on file. Such notification by the Board shall be in writing, and shall be sent by Certified Mail to the given mailing address of each of these employees.
- (d) Any employee who is employed during that period of the year, and who desires such position, shall make written application for the new position or vacancy. Any employee who is not employed during that period, but has his/her written application on file for such position or vacancy, shall reply to the Board by Certified Mail as to his/her desire of being placed in that vacancy or new position. All such replies shall be within either five (5) working days from the date the position is posted, or within five (5) working days from the date the employee receives written notification of such vacancy.
- (e) The Board shall honor all such requests, to the extent that all applicants shall be given a personal interview by the Building Administrator or Supervisor before the vacancy is awarded to any employee. The Building Administrator shall consider the seniority of all of the applicants along with all other factors including the results of tests for secretarial skills which are relevant for the position. In the event that the Building Administrator or Supervisor determines to place a less senior employee in the open position, the Building Administrator or Supervisor and the Assistant Superintendent shall, upon request, personally meet with any more senior employee(s) who were not awarded the job, and review with any such employee(s) the reason or reasons as to why a more senior employee was not awarded the position.
- (f) The employee who is awarded the position will be given a trial period not to exceed thirty (30) working days within which to qualify for the job at the employee's present rate of pay. In the event the employee successfully completes the thirty (30) working days probationary period, the employee shall be paid the rate of pay for the new position retroactive to the date the employee was placed in the position during such probationary period. When possible and to the degree deemed necessary, the employer will arrange for a reasonable period of transition training by the employee vacating the position or an employee familiar with the job responsibilities. However, the employer and the Union can mutually agree that no training is necessary in a particular case.

- (g) The new or vacant job notice shall contain the following:
 - 1. Type of work
 - 2. Job location
 - 3. Starting date
 - 4. Rate of pay
 - 5. Hours to be worked
 - 6. Classification
 - 7. Preferred Qualifications
- (h) Bargaining unit employees may participate in Community Education Classes to refresh and/or upgrade their clerical skills and/or improve their physical fitness, without payment of fees, provided there is room in said classes and provided that the creation of additional classes is not required.

Temporary Vacancies

(a) Temporary vacancies are deemed to be temporary as long as the regular employee is off the job but is due or scheduled to report back to her/his regular work assignment.

Temporary vacancies shall be for a period not to exceed one calendar year unless both parties mutually agree to an extension.

- (1) The Board shall have the right to hire a temporary employee not covered by this Agreement to fill a temporary vacancy for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days during the time that an employee who is covered by this Agreement is not on the job.
- (2) The Board shall have the right to temporarily transfer an employee from one position in the bargaining unit to another position in the bargaining unit in the same classification as a result of a temporary vacancy for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days, except in the event that both parties mutually agree to an extension of the thirty (30) calendar day period. The transferred employee shall continue to accrue seniority in her/his current classification and shall continue to receive her/his classification rate of pay according to Schedule A.
- (3) The Board shall have the right to temporarily assign an employee from one position in the bargaining unit to another position in the bargaining unit of a higher classification as a result of a temporary vacancy for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days.

The assigned employee shall receive the higher classification pay (based on her/his years of salary credit) beginning the first (1st) day. The employee shall continue to accrue seniority in her/his former classification.

(4) If a temporary vacancy extends or is expected to extend beyond thirty (30) calendar days, the Board shall post and fill the vacancy on a temporary basis under the terms of this Article by the 30th calendar day, except in the event that both parties mutually agree to an extension of the thirty (30) calendar day period per paragraph (2) above.

If the temporary vacancy is a higher classification than the classification held by the employee in the bargaining unit who is placed in the temporary vacancy, the employee shall receive the higher classification pay (based on her/his years of salary credit) beginning on her/his first (1st) work day following the 30th calendar day or her/his first (1st) work day after the extension period ends whichever is applicable. The employee shall begin to accrue seniority in the higher classification beginning on her/his first work day following the 30th calendar day or her/his first work day after the extension period ends whichever is applicable.

- (5) If a second temporary vacancy occurs as a result of paragraphs (2), (3) or (4) above, the Board shall have the right to hire a temporary employee not covered by this Agreement to fill the second temporary vacancy.
- (b) In the event that it is determined that the regular employee will not be returning to her/his regular job, or will not be returning to her/his regular job beyond one calendar year or, the extension period beyond one year, if applicable, that position shall be considered a permanent vacancy and shall be posted and filled as specified under the terms of this Article.

ARTICLE 11

NEW JOBS

- (a) When new jobs are placed in operation during the term of this Agreement and they cannot be properly placed into an existing classification by mutual agreement between the parties, the Board shall place into effect a new classification and a rate of pay for the job in question, and shall designate the classification and pay rate as temporary. Upon the institution of such job, the Board shall notify the Union in writing of any such temporary job which has been placed into effect.
- (b) The new classification and rate of pay shall be considered as temporary for a period of thirty (30) calendar days, following the date of written notification to the Union. During this thirty (30) calendar day period, but not thereafter during the life of this Agreement, the Union may request in writing the Board to negotiate the classification and rate of pay. The negotiated rate, if higher than the temporary rate, shall be applied to the date the employee first began working in the temporary classification, except as otherwise mutually agreed. In a case where the parties are unable to agree on the classification and/or rate of pay, the issue may be submitted to the grievance procedure. When a new classification has been assigned a permanent rate of pay, either as a result of final negotiations, or upon resolving the

matter through the grievance procedure, the new classification shall be added to and become a part of Schedule A of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 12

DISCIPLINE-DISCHARGE

Dismissal, suspension and/or any other disciplinary action shall be only for just and stated causes, which shall be given to the employee in writing. The employee shall have the right to defend himself/herself against any and all charges. When the Board feels disciplinary action is warranted, such action must be initiated within ten (10) working days of the occurrence of the conditions giving rise to the action, or within ten (10) working days of the date it is reasonable to assume that the Board first became fully aware of the conditions giving rise to the discipline. Among the causes which shall be deemed sufficient for dismissal, suspension and/or other disciplinary action are the following: drunkenness, dishonesty, insubordination or willful violation of agreed upon Board's rules.

ARTICLE 13

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- (a) An employee who, because of illness or accident which is non-compensable under the Worker's Compensation Law, is physically unable to report for work and has exhausted all means of allowable compensation from the Board, shall be granted a leave of absence for up to one (1) year which may be extended by the Board, provided the employee notifies the Board of the necessity therefore, and provided further that the employee supplies the Board with a statement from a medical or osteopathic doctor of the necessity and length of time for such absence and for the continuation of such absence when the same is requested by the Board.
- (b) Leaves of absence for up to thirty (30) days shall be granted for an employee's physical or mental illness or prolonged serious illness in the employee's immediate family which includes husband, wife, children or parents living in the same household.
- (c) Upon approval of the Board, leaves of absence may be granted for a specified period of time for training related to an employee's regular duties in an approved educational institution.
- (d) The reinstatement rights of any employee who enters the military service of the United States by reason of an Act or Law enacted by the Congress of the United States, or who may voluntarily enlist during the effective period of such law, shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the law granting such rights.
- (e) Leaves of absence will be granted to an employee who is active in the National Guard or a branch of the Armed Forces Reserves for the purpose of fulfilling his/her annual field training obligations, or ordered to active duty for the purpose of handling an emergency situation, providing such employees make written request

for such leaves of absence immediately upon receiving their orders to report for such duty.

- (f) Any employee in the bargaining unit who is either elected or appointed to full-time position or office in the Union, whose duties require his absence from work, shall be granted a leave of absence for the term of such office or position.
- (g) All reasons for leaves of absence shall be in writing, stating the reason for the request, and the approximate length of leave requested, with a copy sent to the Union.
- (h) An employee who meets all of the requirements as herein before specified shall be granted a leave of absence without pay and shall retain all seniority accumulated prior to such leave, with the exception of leaves set forth in Paragraph (a) of this Article, in which case the employee shall accumulate seniority. Upon completion of all leaves, the employee shall be entitled to resume regular seniority status and all job and recall rights. Leaves of absence may be granted at the discretion of the Board for reasons other than those listed above when they are deemed beneficial to the employee and the Board.
- (i) An employee in the bargaining unit who is on a leave of absence shall have return rights to her/his same position and classification in the bargaining unit for up to one calendar year. Upon returning to the bargaining unit, the employee shall receive her/his rate of pay according to Schedule A.

An employee who is on a leave of absence for more than one calendar year shall have return rights to the first permanent vacancy in the bargaining unit for which they are qualified unless both parties mutually agree that the employee shall return to her/his same position. In either event, upon returning to the bargaining unit, the employee shall maintain her/his classification held prior to the leave and shall receive her/his rate of pay according to Schedule A.

However, the employee shall apply and be considered for the first vacancy in her/his classification with a comparable work calendar or forfeit the pay rate of her/his classification if higher. The process will be repeated until the employee is placed in her/his original classification.

(j) Family and Medical Leave Act - A leave of absence without pay will be granted to any eligible employee for the purpose listed and consistent with the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. The employee may substitute any or all available accrued paid leave of absence and paid vacation which would otherwise be unpaid under the Act. Employees anticipating the need for the leave under this act should discuss its provisions along with other leave provisions in this contract with the Assistant Superintendent prior to applying for said leave.

ARTICLE 14

SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Definitions

- (a) A grievance shall be defined as an alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of the express terms of this Agreement.
- (b) For the purpose of processing grievances, working days shall be defined as Monday through Friday, excluding all paid holidays.
- (c) The time elements in the Steps may be shortened, extended or waived upon written mutual agreement between the parties.
- (d) Any employee or Union grievance shall be instituted through the grievance procedure within five (5) working days of the occurrence of the condition giving rise to the grievance, or within five (5) working days of the date it is reasonable to assume that the employee or the Union first became aware of the conditions giving rise to the grievance. Any situation presented for adjustment outside the time limits specified shall not hereafter be considered a grievance under this Agreement.

STEP ONE

- (a) Any employee having a grievance shall discuss the grievance with his immediate supervisor. If the grievance is not settled orally, the employee may request a meeting with the Union Representative to discuss the grievance.
- (b) The Union Representative then may submit the grievance in writing to the immediate supervisor stating the facts upon which the grievance is based and the alleged contract violation and remedy or correction requested. The employee and the Union Representative shall sign the grievance.

STEP TWO

- (a) The immediate supervisor, within two (2) working days of receipt of the written grievance, shall meet with the Union Representative to discuss the grievance.
- (b) The immediate supervisor shall give his/her decision in writing relative to the grievance within five (5) working days of his/her meeting with the Union Representative and the grievant.

STEP THREE

(a) Any appeal of a decision rendered by the immediate supervisor shall be presented in writing within five (5) working days from STEP TWO above to the Superintendent's designee, stating the reason or reasons why the decision of the immediate supervisor was not satisfactory.

- (b) Within five (5) working days of its written submission to the Superintendent's designee, the Uniserv Director shall meet with the Superintendent's designee, the Union Representative and the grievant to discuss the grievance.
 - (c) Within five (5) working days of the meeting with the Uniserv Director, the Superintendent's designee shall give his/her decision in writing.

STEP FOUR

- (a) Any appeal of a decision rendered by the Superintendent's designee shall be presented in writing to the Superintendent of Schools within five (5) working days of the date of receipt of the decision rendered by the Superintendent's designee.
- (b) The appeal shall be in writing and shall state the reason or reasons why the decision of the Superintendent's designee was not satisfactory.
- (c) The Superintendent of Schools shall meet with a Uniserv Director at a time mutually agreeable to them, but no later than ten (10) calendar days following receipt of the appeal.
- (d) The Superintendent of Schools shall give his/her decision in writing relative to the grievance within five (5) working days of the meeting with the Uniserv Director.

STEP FIVE

- (a) If the appealing party is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Superintendent within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of receipt of the answer given by the Superintendent, the grievance may be submitted to Arbitration.
- (b) The appealing party shall request the Michigan Employment Relations Commission (MERC) to submit a list of five (5) persons to both parties. The representatives of the Board and the Union shall return the list of five (5) persons to the designated mailing address of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission within the specified time period as is furnished to the parties by the Michigan Employment Relations Commission. Each party upon returning the listing of the potential arbitrators to the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, shall indicate as to their individual preference of the arbitrator by numbering of said arbitrators one (1) through five (5). The Michigan Employment Relations Commission, upon receipt of the returned lists by the parties, shall assign the arbitrator based on the highest preference given by both parties of the persons on said list. That person shall be accepted by both parties as the Arbitrator.
- (c) In the event that neither party returns the listing of arbitrators within the specified time period, the Michigan Employment Relations Commission shall assign one of the persons on the list as the arbitrator, or in the event that one of the parties fails to return their listing within the specified time period, the Michigan Employment Relations Commission shall assign the Arbitrator based on the top preference of the party who did return its listing within the specified time period. In either of these cases, both parties shall accept that person as Arbitrator.

- (d) The Arbitrator, the Union or the Board may call any relevant person as a witness in any arbitration hearing.
- (e) Each party shall be responsible for the expenses of the witnesses that it may call.
- (f) The Arbitrator shall not have the jurisdiction to add to, to subtract from, or to modify any of the terms of this Agreement or any written amendments thereof, or to specify the terms of a new Agreement, or to substitute his/her discretion for that of the parties or to interpret or rule upon questions of local, state or federal law.
- (g) The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the party against whom the decision of the Arbitrator is rendered. Should there be no clear decision in favor of either party, the fees and expenses shall be borne equally by the parties.
- (h) The Arbitrator shall render his/her decision in writing relative to the grievance within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the conclusion of the arbitration hearing.
- (i) The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding upon all employees, the Board and the Union. Either party shall have the right to enter the decision of the Arbitrator in a court of competent jurisdiction in the event the decision of the Arbitrator is in direct conflict with the express term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 15

HOURS and WORK WEEK

Section 1

- (a) The regularly scheduled workweek shall consist of forty (40) hours, beginning at 12:01 a.m. Monday and ending 120 hours thereafter.
- (b) The normal work day shall be eight and one-half (8-1/2) consecutive hours, which shall include a duty-free one-half (1/2) hour unpaid lunch period.

Section 2 - Overtime Rates Will Be Paid As Follows:

- (a) Time and one-half (1-1/2) will be paid for all time worked in excess of eight (8) hours in a twenty-four (24) hour period or for all time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one work week, for which overtime has not already been earned. Time and one-half (1-1/2) applies to both pay and compensatory time subject to the provisions of MI law.
- (b) Time and one-half (1-1/2) will be paid for all hours worked on Saturday.
- (c) Unless mutually agreed otherwise, no employee will be required to take time off from their regular schedule, or have their hours reduced as a result of having to report to work prior to the employee's established starting time, or because the employee worked over eight (8) hours in a work day.

(d) All overtime pay and/or compensatory time must have prior approval of the Administration. Overtime pay and/or compensatory time will be awarded in unusual situations when the employee is asked to work beyond normally scheduled work time.

Section 3 - Reporting Pay

Any employee called to work or permitted to come to work without being notified that there will be no work, or who has not been notified that there is less work than they are regularly scheduled to work, shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay, or if the employee is regularly scheduled to work less than four (4) hours per day, that employee shall receive their regular daily rate of pay.

Section 4 - Call Back

Whenever an employee is required to return to work after the completion of the employee's regularly scheduled working hours, the employee shall receive the pay for the actual hours worked at the appropriate rate of pay, or a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the employee's straight time hourly rate, whichever is greater.

Section 5 - Distribution of Overtime

Overtime shall be divided and rotated as equally as possible according to seniority within the building, and within classification, and among those employees who regularly perform such work.

Section 6 - Rest Periods

Each employee covered by this Agreement shall receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period for each four (4) hours worked per day. The Board shall designate an area within the vicinity of the employee's work area in which the employee may take such rest and lunch periods. In unusual situations by mutual agreement between the employee and his/her supervisor, one or both rest periods may be combined with the one half (1/2) hour lunch period.

ARTICLE 16

SICK LEAVE and FUNERAL LEAVE

Section 1 - Sick Leave

- (a) Each employee covered by this Agreement shall accumulate sick leave in an individual single sick leave bank, with no limit on the maximum accumulation, with such sick leave days to be accumulated as follows:
 - 1. Twelve (12) month employees twelve (12) days per year
 - 2. Ten (10) month employees ten (10) days per year

- (b) Each employee covered by this Agreement will be credited with the proper amount of sick leave days at the beginning of each school year. Any employee who uses more days during the year than the number of sick leave days earned at this rate, shall have this amount deducted from the employee's final salary check, or the employee will return the money due to the District.
- (c) Sick leave shall be granted to an employee when he/she is incapacitated from the performance of his/her duties by sickness or injury.
- (d) A unit member may use sick days in the event of a family medical situation resulting in the necessity of absence from work.
- (e) An employee who is unable to perform his/her duties because of illness or disability shall notify his/her supervisor of that fact before the start of the workday. If an illness or disability extends beyond the first (1st) work day, the employee and the employee's immediate supervisor may make arrangements as to the frequency of notification of the continued illness or disability.
- (f) Upon separation or retirement the employee shall be paid at the rate of \$46.00 per day for all of the employee's accumulated sick leave days up to seventy (70) days. The excess beyond the first seventy (70) such days shall be paid at the rate of \$51.00 per day.
- (g) Records of sick leave accumulated and taken shall be maintained on the employee's bi-weekly paycheck.

Section 2 - Funeral Leave

- (a) When death occurs in an employee's immediate family, i.e., spouse, parent, stepparent, child, step-children, brother, sister, spouse's mother, spouse's father, spouse's brother and sister, grandchild, son-in-law, or daughter-in-law, grandparent of the employee or spouse or relative living in the same household, the employee upon request will be excused for three (3) regularly scheduled working days immediately following the date of death, providing he/she attends the funeral.
- (b) Additional time may be granted at the discretion of the administration, upon request by the employee and charged to the employee's allowable sick leave.

Section 3 - Personal Business Days

Each employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted three (3) personal business days per year with pay, deductible from sick leave. Prior arrangements are to be made for such days whenever possible. Employees may use personal business days for attendance at funerals of relatives or friends not provided for in the funeral leave section.

Section 4 - Union Business Days

The Union shall have five days (5) to use for Union business. The Union shall assume the cost for substitutes for days used in excess of three (3). Officers or designated representatives of the Union will be granted a day's absence upon request provided such use has prior approval of the Union. The Union President shall transmit written authorization to the Board.

ARTICLE 17

HOLIDAYS

(a) Paid holidays will be as follows:

July 4 - 52 week secretaries in pay status
Labor Day
Thanksgiving and the Friday after
Christmas and New Year's Break (all days when school is not in session)
Good Friday
Spring Vacation (all days when school is not in session)
Memorial Day

Note: In the event school is not in session and teachers are not working on the Friday preceding Labor Day, and/or a Mid-winter Break date(s), and/or the Monday following Easter, it is intended that secretaries will have paid holidays.

- (b) An employee may not be required to work on a day indicated to be a paid holiday. However, if an employee is requested to work on a day indicated to be a paid holiday, and the employee does work, the employee shall be paid regular holiday pay plus time and one-half for all hours worked.
- (c) An employee must be in pay status (working or paid leave) the work day immediately before and the workday immediately following a paid holiday in order to qualify for holiday pay.

ARTICLE 18

VACATIONS

- (a) A 52 week secretary shall accumulate a vacation day for each calendar month in which she/he is in pay status for at least three-fourths (3/4) of the working days of the calendar month to a maximum of ninety-six (96) hours per year. Maximum total accumulation shall not exceed one hundred ninety-two (192) at any time.
- (b) Vacations shall be scheduled at a time which will not unduly interfere with or hamper normal operation of the school system. Insofar as it is possible, vacations shall be scheduled at a time satisfactory to the employee. No reasonable request for vacation time shall be denied. For each individual academic year vacation requests for the summer recess, i.e. June, July, August, will be submitted by April 1st of that academic year. Beginning in 2005 the senior employee's request will be honored.

The following year, i.e. 2006, the less senior employee's request will be honored. Thereafter, choices will be alternated on this basis. If requests are not submitted by April 1st, then the employee forfeits his/her right of choice for that academic year and seniority prevails. Notification shall be given to the employee of the status of the vacation request within five (5) workdays after the request is submitted.

- (c) An employee who terminates employment or is placed on leave shall be paid for any unused accumulated vacation days at her/his current wage rate.
- (d) Secretaries in less than 52 week positions shall not accumulate vacation days while serving in those positions.

ARTICLE 19

INSURANCE PROTECTION

Section 1 - Hospitalization/Insurance

The Board shall pay the total cost of the following health insurance coverage for the employee and the employee's dependents, provided the employee is not a dependent covered by other group health insurance or, internally, is not a dependent covered by a health insurance program provided by the Board.

Blue Cross/Blue Shield Flexible Blue Plan II with the following riders: FB-OCSM-24 (osteopathic/chiropractic spinal manipulations up to 24 visits per year), FB-RM100 (removes co-pay and deductible for mammography providers), CI and PCD2 (adds coverage for contraceptive injections, physician prescribed contraceptive devices such as diaphragms and IUD's to medical-surgical coverage) and PD-CM (adds federal legend oral or injectable contraceptive medications to prescription drug coverage). A contribution to an HRA (Health Reimbursement Arrangement) equal to the plan deductibles and co-pay will be provided by the Board. Rx coverage will be fully paid by the plan with no co-pays. Board will fully pay premium costs and HRA contributions for such insurance coverage.

*Rider HC (Hearing Care) and Rider PCM (removes any preventive care maximum and makes it unlimited) will be added when they become available).

Section 2 - Life Insurance

The Board shall pay the total premium for a \$30,000 group term life insurance policy for each employee covered by this Agreement.

Section 3 - Dental Insurance (Effective Date: 7-1-06)

The Board shall pay the full cost of the Flushing Community Schools dental insurance plan for each employee covered by this Agreement, with such plan to cover the employee and the employee's dependents, provided the employee does not have coverage as a dependent on another group dental insurance program, or internally, as a dependent on a dental insurance program provided by the Board.

Benefits shall be as described on Attachment G with 80% basic, 80% prosthodontic, 80% orthodontic coverage.

Section 4 - Vision Care (Effective Date: 7-1-06)

The Board shall pay the full cost of the Flushing Community Schools vision insurance plan for each employee covered by this Agreement, with such plan to cover the employee and the, employee's dependents, provided the employee does not have coverage as a dependent on another group vision insurance program, or internally, as a dependent on a vision insurance program provided by the Board.

Benefits shall be as defined on Attachment H.

Section 5 - Long Term Disability Protection

- (a) The Board shall pay the full cost of a long term disability insurance plan for each employee covered by this Agreement, with such benefits to be payable upon the 91st calendar day of disability at 66-2/3% of the employee's salary.
- (b) When the employee becomes eligible for the long term disability insurance, any accumulated sick leave days the employee has earned will be frozen for the duration of the disability period, and the employee shall be paid through the insurance program.

Section 6 - Payment of Premiums

All allowable benefits which are provided under this Article shall be paid by the Board for the full twelve (12) months each year for each employee covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 20

GENERAL

Section 1 - Tax Sheltered Annuities

The Board agrees to deduct the premiums for tax-deferred annuities solely paid for by the employee and to remit such premiums to the designated insurance company.

Section 2 - Telephone Facilities

All the employees covered by this Agreement may, for their reasonable use, have access to the telephone facilities of the school district.

Section 3 - Parking

Parking facilities will be provided for the employees covered by this Agreement, with such facilities to be within the reasonable proximity of their building.

Section 4 - Resignation

- (a) Any employee desiring to resign shall file a letter of resignation with the personnel office at least ten (10) working days prior to the effective date of such resignation.
- (b) Any employee who resigns from his/her position in the manner herein described shall maintain his/her rights to any benefits which are payable upon separation and all insurance premiums which are paid by the Board shall terminate as of his/her resignation date.

Section 5 - Pension

The Board agrees to pay the legally specified contribution to the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement Fund on the gross wages for each employee covered by this Agreement.

Section 6 - Deductions

The Board agrees to make available to the employees covered by this Agreement any payroll deduction services which are available through the school district such as Savings Bonds, Credit Union, etc.

Section 7 - Professional Development

- (a) The Board agrees to pay prior approved expenses for any employee designated to attend Professional Development activities specifically designed to provide job related improvement.
- (b) Supervisors may identify areas of improvement for an employee who is deficient in job related skills. The supervisor will develop an Individual Development Plan for professional development and will discuss it with the employee. Failure to meet the goals of the IDP may result in involuntary transfer or disciplinary action.

Section 8 - Physical Examinations

The Board agrees to pay all cost not covered by health insurance of any physical examinations by the Board's selected physician which are required by the Board for any employee who is covered by this Agreement.

Section 9 - Emergency School Closing

Whenever scheduled school is canceled due to acts of God, employees shall not be required to report for work or to remain at work after school premises have been cleared of students. And, affected employees shall experience no loss of pay under such circumstances if they would have otherwise worked. However, non-52 week secretaries may be required to make up days missed (without additional pay) equal to the number of lost instructional days the district is required to make up under state law.

Section 10 - Mileage

An employee who is required to use his/her own transportation for carrying out job responsibilities for the Board shall be reimbursed for mileage at the regular rate and procedure as established by Board policy.

Section 11 - Working Year

The working year for employees covered by this Agreement is indicated in SCHEDULE D - CALENDAR.

Section 12 - Emergency

When the immediate supervisor is to be absent, the employee shall be informed as to the name of the person the employee is to contact in emergency situations.

Section 13 - Medication

The employees covered by this Agreement will not be responsible for administering medication except as Board policy provides.

Section 14 - Legal Protection

If any legal action is brought against an employee covered by this Agreement by reason of any action required by his/her employment, and as a result of performing job duties, the Board will provide such legal counsel and all necessary assistance, without cost to the employee, in his/her defense to the limits as set forth under school district insurance policies.

Section 15 - Workers Compensation

(a) An employee covered by this Agreement who is absent longer than seven (7) calendar days because of illness or injury incurred as a result of performing services for the Board shall be covered by the Workers Compensation Act.

(b) An employee shall accumulate all benefits to which the employee would have been entitled under this Agreement up to two years, while absent due to compensable cause, as though the employee has worked. The "compensable cause" must have occurred and must have been properly reported in writing while employed by the Board.

Section 16 - Paychecks

The Board shall issue the paychecks to the employees covered by this Agreement through the building administrator in which they work as scheduled.

Section 17 - Placement on Salary Schedule

- (a) An employee shall be given full salary credit, on the wage schedule appropriate to her/his classification, for non-terminated years of experience as a Secretary and/or Media Secretary in Flushing Schools.
- (b) An employee shall be given up to three (3) years of salary credit, on the wage schedule appropriate to her/his classification, for previous interrupted years of experience as a Secretary and/or Media Secretary in Flushing Schools.
- (c) An employee shall be given up to three (3) years of salary credit, on the wage schedule appropriate to her/his classification, for non-terminated years of experience as a Paraprofessional in Flushing Schools.
- (d) A newly-hired employee shall be placed on the beginning step of wage schedule appropriate to her/his classification.

Section 18 – Job Skill Testing

Tests to determine job skill levels are generally administered to job applicants. Results of such tests become part of the employment record of a new hire. A unit member may request to re-take a test, or to take a test, once in any six month time window. The higher level of achievement on a complete test or on clearly delineated test segments will become part of the employment records updating and replacing any previous comparable test results.

ARTICLE 21

BENEFITS

It is hereby agreed between the parties that in the event that an employee who is at work but is working less than the established hours in the employee's classification, and is covered by this Agreement, the employee will be entitled to a pro-rata portion of all the benefits as provided for under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 22

JURY DUTY

An employee requested to appear for jury qualification or services shall receive his/her pay from the Board for such time lost as a result of such appearance or service, less any compensation received for jury service. In the event that the employee is subpoenaed as a witness in any case connected with the employee's employment by the school, the employee will be paid full pay for all such days.

ARTICLE 23

ANNUAL LONGEVITY SERVICE AWARD

(a) An annual longevity service award shall be paid to otherwise qualified bargaining unit employees in accordance with the following schedule, (based on the employee's years of salary credit* as of August 1 of each year).

Salary Credit	<u>2004-2005</u>	2005-2006	<u>2006-2007</u>	2007-2008
25 years +	\$470	\$520	\$545	\$545
20-24 years	\$445	\$495	\$520	\$520
15-19 years	\$420	\$470	\$495	\$495
10-14 years	\$395	\$445	\$470	\$470

^{*}Years of continuous service in the district in another bargaining unit shall be included for purpose of longevity only.

Provided:

The service immediately preceded entrance into the bargaining unit and salary credit was not given.

(b) In addition to having the required salary credit, an employee shall meet the following qualification in order to receive an annual longevity service award:

The employee must have worked at least ninety percent (90%) of the scheduled days of his/her classification during the immediately preceding twelve (12) months (December through November).

NOTE: Paid time will be counted as days worked for this purpose.

(c) Annual longevity service awards shall be paid to qualified employees in the first pay in December, and such payment shall be considered as additional wages.

ARTICLE 24

CLASSIFICATION and COMPENSATION

The parties hereto agree that the employees covered by this Agreement shall be considered engaged in the type of work and classification as set forth on Schedule A, B, and C attached hereto and made part hereof by reference.

ARTICLE 25

BINDING EFFECTIVE AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.

ARTICLE 26

SCOPE, WAIVER and ALTERATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 1

No agreement, alteration, understanding, variation, waiver or modification of any of the terms, conditions or covenants contained herein shall be made by any employee or group of employees with the Board, unless executed in writing between the parties hereto and the same has been ratified by the Union.

Section 2

The waiver of any breach or condition of this Agreement by either party shall not constitute a precedent in the future enforcement of the terms and conditions herein.

Section 3

If any Article or Section of this Agreement or any supplement thereto should be held invalid by operation of law or by any competent jurisdiction or tribunal, or if compliance with or enforcement of any Article or Section should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section.

ARTICLE 27

TERMINATION and MODIFICATION

(a) The effective date of this Agreement is July 1, 2004.

- (b) If either party desires to terminate this Agreement it shall, ninety (90) calendar days prior to the termination date give written notice of termination. If neither party shall give notice of termination, or withdraws the same prior to the termination date of this Agreement, it shall continue in full force and effect from year-to-year thereafter subject to notice of termination by either party on ninety (90) calendar days written notice prior to the current year of termination.
- (c) If either party desires to modify or change this Agreement, it shall ninety (90) calendar days prior to the termination date, or any subsequent termination date, give written notice of amendment, in which event the notice of amendment shall set forth the nature of the amendments desired. If notice of amendment of this Agreement has been given in accordance with this paragraph, this Agreement may be terminated by either party on ten (10) calendar days written notice of termination. Any amendments that may be agreed upon shall become and be a part of this Agreement without modifying or changing any of the other terms of this Agreement.
- (d) Notice of termination or modification shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if sent by Certified Mail to the Union, Michigan Education Association, 5095

 Exchange Drive, Flint, Michigan, 40507, and if the Board addressed to Flushing Community Schools, 522 North McKinley Road, Flushing, Michigan, 48433, or to any other address the Union or the Board may make available to each other.
- (e) This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until midnight June 30, 2008.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed.

FLUSHING COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

MICHIGAN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

sident Board of Education

ary Board of Education

Superintendent of Schools

SCHEDULE A

BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS

CLASSIFICATION I

One main office secretary at each school building, the high school bookkeeper, pupil transportation/maintenance office secretaries, the community education office secretary, the special education secretary, and the high school attendance/guidance office secretaries.

CLASSIFICATION II

The high school media secretary and all secretaries not specifically included in any other classification in this SCHEDULE. After a Classification II secretary has attained seven (7) years of salary credit and remained on that step for a year, the following year the secretary will move to the Classification I rate of pay, Step 6 years of salary credit, and ascend up the Classification I schedule each subsequent year.

CLASSIFICATION III

Elementary/junior high media secretaries and the high school career secretary. After a Classification III secretary has attained seven (7) years of salary credit and remained on that step for a year, the following year the secretary will move to the Classification II rate of pay, step 4 years of salary credit, and ascend up the Classification II schedule each subsequent year.

Flushing Community Schools Secretarial Bargaining Unit Hourly Wages

2000/E2005	Glassifie	ations	
Yલ્ટાકાઈ સ્તાનાપ ઉત્સ્વાદ	$\{ \{ \{ \{ \}, \{ \} \} \} \} \in \mathcal{F}_{p} \}$		
0	12.10	10.73	10.05
1	12.69	11.39	10.53
2	13.30	12.10	10.99
3	13.95	12.72	11.39
4	14.55	13.36	11.86
5	15.19	14.05	12.28
6	15.76	14.75	12.75
7	16.38	15.40	13.22

2005-2005	Chasifications		
Yensol Sanay Greill			ull's
0*	12.46	11.06	10.35
1*	13.08	11.73	10.85
2*	13.70	12.46	11.32
3	14.23	12.97	11.62
4	14.84	13.63	12.10
5	15.49	14.33	12.53
6	16.08	15.05	13.01
7	16.71	15.71	13.48
* includes a 1% increase a	t these steps in all cla	assificatio	ons

applied after a 2% increase from 2004-2005.

20103-201074	ાતીમાં આપેટના છે. - આવામાં આપેટના છે.		
Years of Salary Greek			
0	12.71	11.28	10.56
1	13.34	11.96	11.07
2	13.97	12.71	11.55
3	14.51	13.23	11.85
4	15.14	13.90	12.34
5	15.80	14.62	12.78
6	16.40	15.35	13.27
7	17.04	16.02	13.75

^{*}A one time flat rate bonus of 1% of the base salary of each unit member earned for 2006-2007 will be awarded on the final check issued in June, 2007.

2007-2008

The hourly wage for the 2007-2008 school year shall be increased at a rate of 90% of the percentage increase in the State of Michigan Basic Foundation Allowance; however, in no event less than 2% nor more than 3%.

Example: Assume the increase in the foundation allowance for 2006-2007 is increased by 3%, the hourly wage increase will be 2.7%; assume the increase for 2006-2007 is 2%, 90% would be 1.8% (except the minimum cap would elevate it to 2%).

2004-2005

() indicates pay dates

52 Week Secretaries have 26 pay dates beginning on 7/2/04.

All other Unit Secretaries have 23 pay dates beginning on 8/16/04.

Media and Career Center Secretaries have 22 pay dates beginning on 8/30/04.

52 Week Secretaries work year round as scheduled.

Media and Career Center Secretaries regular work year is scheduled per calendar.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the third Monday before Labor Day and extend through the first Friday of the first full week after the school year calendar ends.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the fourth Wednesday preceding Labor Day and extend forty-four (44) consecutive weeks from that day. It is understood that the two paid Fridays following Parent/Teacher Conferences (Fall and Spring) may be taken as unpaid days and then worked as paid days during the first workweek in August or immediately after the last scheduled work day in June.

2005-2006

() indicates pay dates

52 Week Secretaries have 26 pay dates beginning on 7/1/05.

Other Unit Secretaries have 23 pay dates beginning on 8/26/05.

Media and Career Center Secretaries have 22 pay dates beginning on 9/9/05.

52 Week Secretaries work year round as scheduled.

Media and Career Center Secretaries regular work year is scheduled per calendar.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the third Monday before Labor Day and extend through the first Friday of the first full week after the school year calendar ends.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the fourth Wednesday preceding Labor Day and extend forty-four (44) consecutive weeks from that day. It is understood that the two paid Fridays following Parent/Teacher Conferences (Fall and Spring) may be taken as unpaid days and then worked as paid days during the first workweek in August or immediately after the last scheduled work day in June.

) indicates pay dates

52 Week Secretaries have 26 pay dates beginning on 7/14/2006.

All other Unit Secretaries have 23 pay dates beginning on 8/25/2006.

Media and Career Center Secretaries have 22 pay dates beginning on 8/31/2006.

	52 Week Secretaries	Other Unit Secretaries	Media/Career Center Secretaries
Workdays	237	203	180
Paid Holidays	23	22	22

52 Week Secretaries work year round as scheduled.

Media and Career Center Secretaries regular work year is scheduled per calendar.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the third Monday before Labor Day and extend through the first Friday of the first full week after the school year calendar ends.

For all Other Unit Secretaries it is understood that the two paid Fridays off following Parent/Teacher Conferences (Fall and Spring) may be taken as unpaid days and then worked as paid days immediately after the last scheduled workday in June.

ATTACHMENT E FLUSHING COMMUNITY SCHOOLS GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM Flushing OP/MEA

Grievance Number	 		
Area of Alleged Violatio	n of the expressed term	ns of the Agreement	
GRIEVANCE REPORT			
Submit to Supervisor in	Triplicate		
Building	Assignment	Name of Grievant	Date Filed
Date of STEP ONE Disc	cussion:		
STEP TWO			
A. Date Cause of Grie	vance Occurred		
B. 1. Statement of Gr	evance	·	
2. Relief Sought			
	Signature	}	Date
	Signature	Union Representative	Date
C. Disposition by Supe	rvisor or appropriate de	esignee	
	Signature)	Date
D. Position of Grievant	and/or Union		<u></u>
	Signature)	Date

A.	Date Received by Superintendent's designee			
B.	Disposition of Superintendent's designee			
		Signature	Date	
C.	Position of Grievant and/or Union			
		Signature	Date	
STEF	FOUR			
A.	Date received by Superintendent	of Schools		
B.				
	Sig	nature	Date	
C.	Position of Grievant and/or Unior			
		Signature	Date	
STE	P FIVE			
A.	Date submitted to arbitration			
B.	Decision of Arbitrator			
			Data of Decicion	

ATTACHMENT F FLUSHING COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Flushing, Michigan

Letter Of Understanding Between Flushing Community Schools And Flushing OP/MEA

It is agreed that a Contract Maintenance Committee composed of representatives of the two above referenced groups shall be formed. It is further agreed that such committee shall incorporate the following tenets:

- A. The Board and the Union support the concept of collaboration in the workplace and will work as a joint team to resolve mutual problems and concerns.
- B. In order to facilitate communications between the Board and the Union, a Contract Maintenance Committee (CMC) comprised of representatives from the Union and the Board will meet as needed, usually bi-monthly, to discuss topics and resolve issues and problems.
- C. Unit members, supervisors, administrators and union representatives are expected to share problems and concerns at the building level or with the appropriate administrator so that the problem or concern can be researched, discussed, and resolved at the lowest possible level.
- D. Problems and concerns that cannot be solved at the building level or that initially should be taken to the CMC may be referred to the CMC by an employee, the union, a supervisor or administrator.
- E. The CMC will attempt to resolve problems or concerns prior to implementing the grievance procedure.
- F. Nothing in this letter of understanding shall be construed to prevent a unit member of the Union from filing a grievance. However, the five (5) working day grievance filing deadline in Article 14 of the Agreement is delayed until a solution or recommendation is made by the CMC.
- G. Eligible issues or problems may be referred by the CMC, the Union, an employee, a supervisor or an administrator to the Grievance Procedure if the CMC is found not to be the appropriate venue to address that issue or problem.

H.	Unit members shall not lose time or pay for the	me spent in CMC Mee	etings.
Presi	dent, Flushing OP/MEA	Date	
Supe	rintendent, Flushing Community Schools	Date	

SCHEDULE C

BARGAINING UNIT SENIORITY AND SALARY CREDIT

Effective July 1, 2006, the following bargaining unit employees are determined to have the following years of bargaining unit seniority (additional years of salary credit are indicated). [Additional years of longevity credit are indicated.]

	NAME	SENIORITY	YEARS 07/03	7/04	7/05	7/06	7/07	7/08		
1.	Elizabeth Bickford	(10-11-77)	26	27	28	29	30	31		
2.	Patricia Lawrence	(08-11-80)	23	24	25	26	27	28		
3.	Ann Bol	(08-22-84)	19	20	21	22	23	24		
4.	Brenda Lawrence	(08-12-85)	18	19	20	21	22	23		
5.	Eileen Nelson	(08-17-87)	16	17	18	19	20	21		
6.	Mary Petricevic	(09-05-89)	14	15	16	17	18	19		
7.	Paula Bedford	(10-07-91)	12	13	14	15	16	17	ļ	
8	Gaye Fotenakes	(10-07-91)	12	13	14	15	16	17		
9.	Deborah Atkinson	(11-04-91)	12	13	14	15	16	17_		
10.	Elizabeth Fonger	(08-29-94)	9	10	11	12	13	14	(03)	[05]
11.	Kay Leitelt	(06-26-95)	8	9	10	11	12	13		
12.	Sandra Drubin	(01-04-96)	7	8	9	10	11	12		
13.	Linda Householder	(10-07-98)	5	6	7	8	9	10		
14.	Patsy Hendry	(05-17-99)	4	5	6	7	8	9	<u> </u>	
15.	Renee Scheller	(06-01-99)	4	5	6	7	8	9		
16.	Deborah Harp	(11-01-99)	4	5	6	7	8	9		
17.	Mary Lyon	(11-15-99)	4	5	6	7	8	9		
18.	Ann Taylor	(01-31-00)	3	4	5	6	7	8		
19.	Pauline Tippett	(05-22-00)	3	4	5	6	7	8		
20.	Rochelle Maroun	(08/11/04)	0	0	1	2	3	4		
21.	Vicki Foster	(08/16/04)	0	0	1	2	3	4		
22.	Janet Hamblin	(10/13/04)	0	0	1	2	3	4		
23.	Diane Sikora	(12/06/04)	0	0	1	2	3	4	ļ	
24.	Shelly Stringer	(01/31/05)	0	0	0	11	2	3_	<u> </u>	

Flushing Community Schools Flushing, Michigan

March 1, 2006

BARGAINING UNIT SECRETARY SENIORITY LIST

(from highest to lowest seniority)

1.	Elizabeth Bickford	(10/11/77)
2.	Patricia Lawrence	(08/11/80)
3.	Ann Bol	(08/22/84)
4.	Brenda Lawrence	(08/12/85)
5.	Eileen Nelson	(08/17/87)
6.	Mary Petricevic	(09/05/89)
7.	Paula Bedford	(10/07/91)
8.	Gaye Fotenakes	(10/07/91)
9.	Deborah Atkinson	(11/04/91)
10.	Elizabeth Fonger	(08/29/94)
11.	Kay Leitelt	(06/26/95)
12.	Sandra Drubin	(01/04/96)
13.	Linda Householder	(10/07/98)
14.	Patsy Hendry	(05/17/99)
15.	Renee Scheller	(06/01/99)
16.	Deborah Harp	(11/01/99)
17.	Mary Lyon	(11/15/99)
18.	Ann Taylor	(01/31/00)
19.	Pauline Tippett	(05/22/00)
20.	Rochelle Maroun	(08/11/04)
21.	Vicki Foster	(08/16/04)
22.	Janet Hamblin	(10/13/04)
23.	Diane Sikora	(12/06/04)
24.	Shelly Stringer	(01/31/05)

2007-2008

() indicates pay dates

52 Week Secretaries have 27 pay dates beginning on 7/6/2006.

All other Unit Secretaries have 24 pay dates beginning on 8/17/2006.

Media and Career Center Secretaries have 22 pay dates beginning on 8/30/2006.

	52 Week Secretaries	Other Unit Secretaries	Media/Career Center Secretaries
Workdays	238	203	181
Paid Holidays	22	21	21

52 Week Secretaries work year round as scheduled.

Media and Career Center Secretaries regular work year is scheduled per calendar.

All other Unit Secretaries regular work year shall normally begin on the third Monday before Labor Day and extend through the first Friday of the first full week after the school year calendar ends.

For all Other Unit Secretaries it is understood that the two paid Fridays off following Parent/Teacher Conferences (Fall and Spring) may be taken as unpaid days and then worked as paid days immediately after the last scheduled workday in June.

July 2005

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
					(1)	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	(15)	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	(29)	30/31

July 4 Paid holiday for 52 Week Secretaries in pay status on 7/01 and 7/05.

August 2005

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	1	2	3	4	5	6
7	8	9	10	11	(12)	13
14	15	16	17	18	19	20
21	22	23	24	25	(26)	27
28	29	30	31			

August 8	First work day for other Unit Secretaries.
August 26	First work day for Career/Media Secretaries.
·	

September 2005

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	(9)	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	(23)	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	

Sept. 2	Friday before Labor Day. No School. Paid holiday for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 9/1 and 9/6.
Sept. 5	Labor Day. No School. Paid holiday for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 9/1 and 9/6.

October	2005
October	400 3

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri_	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	(7)	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	(21)	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					

Oct. 27	Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries— Secondary only Students AM only
Oct. 28	Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries—Secondary only

Oct. 31 Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries—Elementary only Students AM only

November 2005

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	(4)	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	(18)	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30	-		

	day Career/Media Elementary only only
--	---

Nov. 11

Non work day for Career/Media
Secretaries—Elementary only
No School Elementary

Nov. 24 Thanksgiving Vacation.
Nov. 25 Paid Holidays for all Unit
Secretaries in pay status on
11/23 and 11/28.

December 2005

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	(16)	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	(30)	31

Dec. 22 Winter Break. No School. Dec. 30 Paid holidays for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 12/21 and 1/3.

January	2006
---------	------

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	(13)	14
15	[16]	17	18	19	20*	21
22	[23]	24	25	26	(27)	28
29	30	31				

Jan 2.	Winter Holiday Break No School. Paid holiday for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 1/3.
Jan. 16	Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries. No Students.
Jan. 20	PM Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries—Secondary only Students AM.
Jan. 23	Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries— Secondary only

February	2006
1 Colual y	2000

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	(10)*	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	(24)	25
26	27	28				

o School Elementary. id Winter Break o School
aid holidays for all Unit ecretaries in pay status on 16 & 2/21.

March 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	i		1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	(10*)	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	(24)	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	

Mar. 10	Non work day for Career/Media Secretaries—Secondary only. No School Secondary.
Mar. 27 Mar. 31	Spring Break No School Paid holidays for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 3/23 & 4/3.

April 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue_	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	(7)	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	(21)	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29/30

Apr. 14	Easter Break
Apr. 17	No School Paid holidays for all Unit Secretaries in pay status on 4/13 & 4/18.

May 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	1	2	3	4	(5)	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	(19)	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31			

May 29	Memorial Day
	No School
	Paid holiday for all Unit
	Secretaries in pay status on
	5/26 & 5/31.
	0,20 % 0,0
1	
·	
1	
1	
1	

June 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	[9]	10
11	12	13	14	15	(16)	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	(30)	

June 8	Students AM
June 8	Last day Career/Media Secretaries
June 13	Last day all other Unit Secretaries
1	

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR 2006-2007 School Year

52 week secretary Other unit secretaries Media/ Career secretaries

Inly	2006
July	2000

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	(14)	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	(28)	29
30	31					

July 4 Paid Holiday for 52 week Secretaries in pay status On 7/03 and 7/05.	20	0	E=0 S=0

August 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	(11)	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	(25)	26
27	28	29	30	(31)*		

Aug. 14 First work day for Other Unit Secretaries.	23	14	E=2 S=2
August 30 First work day for Career/ Media Secretaries.			
August 31* One Week paid.			

September 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	:				1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	(15)	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	(29)	30

Sept 1 and 19 19 E=19 Sept 4 Paid Holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 8/31 and 9/05.

() Pay Dates

SCHEDULE D-CALENDAR 2006-2007 School Year

52	Othe
Week	unit
ecretary	secreta

Media/ Career secretaries

\sim		1	00	~
A	cta	ber	74	11 16
~ /	UU	UUL	$ \sim$ 0	vv

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri_	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	(13)	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	(27)	28
29	30	31				

22	22	E=21.5 S=20.5
	22	22 22

November 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
· · · · · · ·			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	(10)	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	(22)	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		

November 9 Elementary Career/Media	20	20	E=18.5 S=20
Secretaries AM only. November 10			
Non work day for			
Elementary Career/Media			
Secretaries.			
November 23 and			
November 24 Thanksgiving Vacation			i
Paid holidays for all		. '	
Secretaries in pay status			
On 11/22 and 11/27.			
	!		

December 2006

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				,	1	2
3	4	5	6	7	(8)	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	(20)	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31						

December 21- December 29 Christmas Vacation Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 12/20/06 and 1/3/07	14	14	E=14 S=14
		-	

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR 2006-2007 School Year

52	Oth
Week	uni
secretary	secreta

Other unit secretaries

Media/ Career secretaries

January	2007
January	200 /

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	1	2	3	4	(5)	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	(19)	20
21	22	23	- 24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31			

January 1, 2 New Year's Day Paid holiday for all Secretaries in pay status On 12/30/06 and 1/3/07	21	21	E=20 S=19.5
January 15 Non work day for Career/ Media Secretaries.			
January 19 Secondary Career/Media Secretaries AM only.			
			!

February 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	(15)	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28			

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			3
February 9 Non work day for Elementary Career/Media Secretaries.	18	18	E=17 S=18	
February 16 and February 19 Winter Break Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 2/15 and 2/20.				

March 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	(16)	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	(30)	31

March 9 Non work day for Secondary Career/Media Secretaries.	22	22	E=22 S=21

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR 2006-2007 School Year

52	
Week	
secretary	

Other unit secretaries Media/ Career secretaries

April	2007
whrm	2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	(13)	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	(27)	28
29	30					

April 6- April 13 Spring Break. No School. Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 4/05 and 4/16.	15	15	E=15 S=15

May 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu_	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	(11)	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	(25)	26
27	28	29	30	31		

May 28 Memorial Day Paid holiday for all Unit	22	22	E=22 S=22
Secretaries in pay status On 5/25 and 5/29.			

June 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	(8)	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	(22)	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30

June 13 Last work day for Career/Media Secretaries.	21	E=16 S=16	E=9 S=9
June 22 Last work day for all Other Unit Secretaries			
Totals	237	203	E=180 S=180

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR (TENTATIVE) 2007-2008 School Year

July 2007							
Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	
1	2	3	4	5	(6)	7	

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	(6)	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	(20)	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

r	52 Week secretary	Other unit secretaries	Media/ Career secretar-
July 4 Paid holiday for 52 week Secretaries in pay status On 7/03 and 7/06.	21	0	E=0 S=0
		1	

August 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
			1	2	(3)	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	(17)	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	(30)	31	

August 13 First work day for Other Unit Secretaries.	22	14	E=2 S=2
August 29 First work day for Career/ Media Secretaries.			
August 31 Labor Day Weekend Paid holiday for all Secretaries in pay status On 8/30 and 9/04.			

September 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	(7)*	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	(21)	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30						

September 3 Labor Day Paid holiday for all Secretaries in pay status On 8/30 and 9/04.	19	19	E=19 S=19
September 7* One week paid.			
			L

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR (TENTATIVE) 2007-2008 School Year

52	
Week	
secretary	

Other Unit secretaries

Media/ Career

October	2001	7
October	ZUU	/

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	1	2	3	4	(5)	6
7	8	9	10	11	12	13
14	15	16	17	18	(19)	20
21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31*			

	Secretary	Secretaries	Secietai-
October 25 Secondary Career/Media Secretaries AM only.	23	23	E=22.5 S=21.5
October 26 Non work day for Secondary Career/Media Secretaries.			
October 31 Elementary Career/Media Secretaries AM only.			

November 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	(16)	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	(30)	

November 8 Elementary Career/Media Secretaries AM only.	20	20	E=18.5 S=20
November 9 Non work day for Elementary			
Media Secretaries.			
November 22 and November 23			
Thanksgiving vacation Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status 11/21 and 11/26.			

December 2007

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	(14)	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	(28)	29
30						

	December 20- December 31 Christmas vacation Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 12/19 and 1/2/08	13	13	E=13 S=13
--	---	----	----	--------------

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR (TENTATIVE) 2007-2008 School Year

52	Other	Medi
Veek	unit	Care
retary	secretaries	secreta

January 2008

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	(11)	12
13	. 14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	(25)	26
27	28	29	30	31		

	conclus	5001Ctalles	acci ciai ica
January 1 New Year's Day Paid holiday for all Secretaries in pay status On 12/19 and 1/2/08.	22	22	E=22 S=21.5
January 18 Secondary Career/Media Secretary a.m. only			
·			_

February 2008

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	(8)	9
10	-11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	(22)	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	

February 8 Non work day for Elementary Career/Media	19	19	E=18 S=19
Secretaries Eabruary 15 and			
February 15 and February 18 Winter Break			
Paid holidays for all			
Secretaries in pay status On 2/14 and 2/19.			ļ

March 2008

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		:				1
2	3	4	5	6	(7)	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	(20)	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					

March 7 Non work day for Secondary Career/Media Secretaries. (Subject to change based On Teacher's Contract or Instructional calendar).	15	15	E=15 S=14
March 21- March 28 Spring Vacation Paid holidays for all Secretaries in pay status On 3/20 and 3/31.			

SCHEDULE D—CALENDAR (TENTATIVE)

	_				- \
2	007	2008	Scho	lo	Year

52	
Week	
secretary	

Other unit secretaries

Media/ Career secretar-

A	oril	20	08

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
		1	2	3	(4)	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	(18)	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			

,		
22	22	E=22 S=22

May 2008

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
				1	(2)	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	(16)	.17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	(30)	31

May 26 Memorial Day Paid holiday for all Unit Secretaries in pay status On 5/23 and 5/27.	21	21	E=21 S=21
·			

June 2008

Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	(13)	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	(27)	28
29	30					
				-		<u> </u>

June 11 Last work day for Career/ Media Secretaries.	21	15	E=8 S=8
June 20 Last work day for all Other Unit Secretaries.			
Totals	238	203	181
			:

Flushing Community Schools **Dental Benefit Program**

Basic Services

Basic Services Include

80% of R&C*

Services Such As:

Examinations

Cleaning (Prophylaxis)

Fillings

Fluoride Treatment (to age 18)

Periodontics

Diagnostic X-Rays

Oral Surgery and Anesthetics

Root Canals (Endodontics)

Lifetime Deductible \$0

80% of R&C*

Major Services

Major Services Include Such Services As:

Inlays

Crowns and/or Bridges Dentures (Full and Partial) Crown and/or Bridge Repair

Annual Deductible

\$0

Combined Annual Maximum

\$1,000 per year/per person

total benefit

Orthodontic Services

80% of R&C*

(to age 19)

Deductible

\$0

Lifetime Maximum

\$1,300 per person

^{*} R&C means reasonable and customary.

Flushing Community Schools Vision Benefit Program

Benefits:

. \$40.00 Once every 12 months
. \$40.00 Once every 12 months
\$55.00 Once every 12 months
\$65.00 Once every 12 months
\$80.00 Once every 12 months
\$85.00 Once every 12 months
. \$50.00 Once every 12 months
\$150.00 Once every 12 months

ATTACHMENT I Flushing Community Schools Flushing, Michigan

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING Between Flushing Community Schools And Flushing OP/MEA

It is understood between the parties that the direction given to specified unit members to enter attendance of employees at point of service is a legitimate right of the Flushing Community Schools to direct its workforce by defining the work to be performed within a classification. It is further understood that the administration will work with unit members to accommodate this work within their current schedules. While this work is a part of the HRS (Human Resource System) component of the computerized management system of the district, it is not the intention of the administrators to expand this work to be done by OP members. Collection of data concerning the attendance of employees at point of service is a legitimate task to be assigned to OP members at the point of service. It is not now, nor has it ever been, the intention of the Flushing Community Schools, to expand the work of OP unit members to include legitimate functions of Payroll or Personnel which will remain at the Administration Offices.

A recognition of the rapidly changing society in which we live brings a realization that change in the workplace is an inevitability. Consequently there will be a constructive abandonment of some work tasks and an adoption of others as the situation demands. Therefore, it is agreed, in the interests of harmony and stress reduction, that when such abandonment or adoption is perceived to be problematic, that either party may refer a discussion of such matters as training, confidentiality, time on task, prioritization of work or provision of suitable work space, to the Contract Maintenance Committee that is part of the Agreement between the parties for due consideration according to the terms of that CMC.

President, Flushing OP/MEA

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date